
 
 

CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE (FTC) 
Agenda 
 

Date Monday 17 September 2018 
 

Time 10.00 am 
 

Venue Shaw Room, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on 
any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect 
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul 
Entwistle or Sian Walter-Browne in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Sian Walter-Browne Tel. 0161 
770 5151 or email sian.walter-browne@oldham.gov.uk 
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS – Any member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Wednesday 
12th September 2018. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and 
the press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends 
a meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 

Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 

including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE (FTC) IS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 Councillors Fielding, Roberts and Shah 
 

 

Item No  

1   Election of Chair  

 The Sub-Committee is asked to elect a Chair for the duration of the Municipal 
Year 2019-2019. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:sian.walter-browne@oldham.gov.uk


 
 

2   Apologies For Absence  

3   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

4   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

5   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

6   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 2) 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Sub-Committee (FTC) held on 30th 
March 2017 are attached for approval. 

7   Lower Memorial Park Failsworth (Pages 3 - 10) 

 



 

CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE (FTC) 
30/03/2017 at 11.30 am 

 
 

Present: Councillor Akhtar (Chair)  
Councillor Brownridge 
 

 

1   ELECTION OF CHAIR   

RESOLVED: That Councillor Akhtar be elected Chair of the 
Failsworth Trust Committee for the Municipal year 2016/17. 
 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Stretton. 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  
 

6   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 24th 
November 2015 be approved as a correct record. 
 

7   CENTENARY FIELDS - FIELDS IN TRUST (FIT)   

The Trustees gave consideration to a report of the Executive 
Director (Economy, Skills and Neighbourhoods) asking them to 
determine whether to dedicate in perpetuity the Lower Memorial 
Park and adjoining land as a Centenary Field, to honour the 
memory of those who lost their lives and those who fought in 
World War I. The site would be protected by Fields in Trust (FIT) 
in partnership with The Royal British Legion.    
 
The Trustees were informed that in 2014, Fields in Trust 
commenced a nationwide initiative in partnership with the Royal 
British Legion to secure recreational spaces in perpetuity to 
honour the memory of millions of people who lost their lives in 
World War I. Through this programme, landowners across the 
UK were encouraged to dedicate at least one recreational space 
as a Centenary Field, creating a tangible local legacy that would 
be available for use by communities for generations to come. 
 
Fields in Trust existed to safeguard fields in perpetuity via a 
legal document called a deed of dedication. Their role was 
purely custodial and advisory, in that they ensured that the fact 
of protection of the site was in the public domain and that any 
change of use, or any buildings which fell outside the terms of Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

protection, would need the specific advanced consent of Fields 
in Trust. The criteria which Fields in Trust applied to 
replacement facilities were that they should be of:- 

i. at least equal size 
ii. better quality 
iii. serving the same community in terms of catchment 

area 
iv. any disposal should apply as much of the proceeds as 

necessary to replacement sport, recreation and/or play 
facilities, with priority given to outdoor before indoor 
facilities. 

 
The Trustees noted that the Council held the freehold title in 
trust for the subject site which was being recommended for 
Centenary Field dedication. The site was currently maintained 
as a memorial park and open public recreational space to those 
who had fought and those who had lost their lives through 
various conflicts, mainly WWI and WWII. 
 
Options/Alternatives considered: 
 
Option 1 – Do not dedicate the land 
Option 2 – Dedicate the property as a Centenary Field 
 
 
RESOLVED: that the Trustees AGREED to the dedication in 
perpetuity of the Lower Memorial Park and adjoining land as a 
Centenary Field, as part of a partnership between Fields in Trust 
and The Royal British Legion to commemorate the World War I 
centenary and remember those who lost their lives and those 
who fought during the conflict, by protecting outdoor recreational 
space for the benefit of future generations. 
 

The meeting started at 11.30 am and ended at 12.00 pm 
 

Page 2



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
The Council, acting in its capacity as charitable trustee, is required to make resolutions to 
authorise certain actions by the trustees to regularise the procedural steps taken to allow 
the installation of a drainage ditch and the placing of topsoil on the land from the adjoining 
residential development site. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
As part of the development of the Lancaster Club, Bellway Homes have constructed a 
drainage attenuation basin and relocated top soil on part of the adjoining Lower Memorial 
Park Trust/Centenary Fields land.  
 
A complaint has been received from a Member of the Friends of Moston Brook group 
concerning the works taking place and the condition of the land as a result of the works. 
Discussions are ongoing with this group to address the concerns and issues raised and to 
resolve these. 
 
Recommendations 
 

(1) To authorise legal officers to inform the Charity Commission of the 
procedural omissions in relation to the granting of an easement over part of 
the land to include the construction and laying of an attenuation basin and 

Report to Cabinet Sub Committee Acting as Trustees for 
Lower Memorial Park  Failsworth 

 
Lower Memorial Park Failsworth 
 

Trustees:  Cllr Fielding, Cllr Roberts and Cllr Shah  
 
Officer Contact:  Roger Frith – Head of Regeneration and 
Development 
 
Report Author: Ben Hill – Principal Regeneration Officer  
Ext. 5261 
 
17th September 2018 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



 

   

drainage pipes and the dumping of top soil from the neighbouring playing 
fields and the proposals as to how these omissions will be remedied. 

 
(2) To authorise officers to appoint an independent Charities Act surveyor to 

advise the trustees generally in relation to the issues arising and in 
particular to review the terms of the easement and consider appropriate 
compensation to the charity for any disamenity to the land caused by the 
works taking into account all pertinent events and circumstances including 
but not limited to the requests of the complainant and any other 
representations made and the offer by the Council to gift additional land into 
the trust.   

 
(3) To authorise officers to provide all necessary support and assistance to the 

trustees in this matter to enable them to avoid any possible conflict of 
interest and to fulfil their statutory duties in relation to the trust land. 

 
(4) To authorise officers to arrange a further meeting with the Friends of 

Moston Brook and agree who should attend. 
 
(5) To authorise officers to arrange public consultation on the proposals for 

compensation and any other proposals put forward by the Friends of 
Moston Brook or other members of the public. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

   

 
Cabinet Sub Committee Acting as Trustees for Lower Memorial Park, Failsworth 

  
17 September 2018 
 
Lower Memorial Park Failsworth. 
 
1 Background 

 

1.1 The Council acquired the former Lancaster Club site from Oldham Athletic in a deal that 
enabled the club to remain in Oldham, using its capital receipt to acquire a new site.  The 
Council plan was to recover its outlay by disposing of the site for residential development. 
This required some preparatory work to relocate allotments and playing field facilities, 
following which the site was marketed for residential development and Bellway Homes Ltd 
was selected as the preferred developer.  The planning consent granted for the site will 
deliver 150 new homes.  The site is immediately adjacent to the Lower Memorial Park. The 
approved scheme for the Bellway development included an attenuation pond on 
charity park land as well as permission to run a foul drainage connection across the 
land. 
 

1.2 Complaints have been received from a Member of the ‘Friends of Moston Brook’ 
Group regarding the works which have taken place, the current condition of the land 
and permissions required for the works. There is a concern that members of the local 
community feel aggrieved with the size of the attenuation basin and the placing of the 
topsoil. 
 

1.3     As part of the Lancaster Club Development, permission was obtained from the Charitable 
Trustees in July 2015 for:  

 
• A land swap – This tidied up the boundary between the Lancaster Club and 

Trust Land that better reflected the ‘on the ground’ position.  The land swap 
resulted in 0.14 acres of Trust land being transferred to Bellway and 0.38 
acres being transferred to the Trust.  

• Approval to the creation a Surface Water Attenuation Basin – The basin 
collects clean surface water during heavy rainfall and then regulates its flow 
into the Moston Brook.   It is a Sustainable Urban Drainage Scheme and is 
widely acknowledged as good practice.  Moston Brook is a heavily modified 
water body and is counted as a main River.  It suffers from bad /poor water 
quality.  The resulting flows of clean water via the attenuation pond will help 
with water quality of the brook through dilution.  In approving this 
arrangement, the Trustees noted that the basin would also create a small 
wetland area which will increase bio-diversity and habitat on the Trust Land.  

• The granting of easements across the trust land for underground drainage 
pipes.   
 

1.4 A plan showing the scope of land covered by the Trust is at appendix 1.  
 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 The attenuation basin and drainage pipeline works have been problematic mainly 

due to weather conditions and whilst the works have now been completed, the site is 
still fenced off.  The works have been carried out in accordance with the approved 
planning consent and include the provision of new steps down to Moston Brook to 
improve access. Works to re-instate the steps has now been completed and these 

Page 5



 

   

are open to the public.  The landscaping around the basin needs to be finished and 
this area will remain fenced off until this work is agreed and completed.   

 
2.2 Shortly before commencing work on site (June 2017), Bellway Homes requested that 

they layer and re-grade the top soil from the former football pitches over part of the 
Trust Land.  This is only the high quality top soil from the sports pitches and would be 
to a depth of around 30 to 45 cm.  

 
2.3 Inspections have shown that the soil is to a depth of around 180-150 cm in places.   The 

soil has been levelled and graded into the existing land and create a consistent surface. 
Seeding and landscaping is still required to the area around the attenuation basin.    

 
2.4 The Friends of Moston Brook Project Officer has been involved throughout the process and 

has kept the Friends Group updated on a regular basis. 
  
2.5 A meeting took place with the former Leader and representatives from the Friends 

Group in April 2018 where they requested that the land previously allocated as a 
Goals! Soccer Centre located between the Memorial Trust land, the Lancaster Club, 
Broadway and the new allotments should be gifted to and thus become part of the 
Charity Land.    
 

2.6 One issue being raised as part of the complaint is that the Attenuation Basin may be 
unsafe especially for children.   

 
2.7 The basin only contains water immediately after periods of rainfall.   The slopes of 

the basin are 1:3 gradient which is an accepted safe gradient.   Grass banks at the 
site of motorways are round 1:2.  The pipes leading into and out of the basin have 
safety grills to prevent access.   

 
2.8 There are no definitive guide lines on fencing or how basins should be left,  although 

best practice is for them to be incorporated into their natural surroundings.  Bellway  
Homes is willing to use some of the soil to create natural landscaping around the 
basin and install suitable signage. 

 
3 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 The cost of the Independent Survey is anticipated to be around £5,000 which will be met 

through Regeneration’s Professional Fees budget.  
 
4 Legal Services Comments 
 
4.1 Independent legal advice has been obtained on behalf of the Trustees on the steps the 

Council and the Trustees should take in the circumstances which arise from the following 
actions and transactions: 

 
(1) The grant of easements to Bellway Homes by the Council as trustee of the Charity 

for the construction of a sewer under the Charity Land to take foul water from the 
development site, the construction of an attenuation basin on the Charity Land and  
the deposit of a maximum of 6600 cubic metres of spoil on the Charity Land. This 
transaction had been approved in July 2015 by the sub-committee of the Cabinet of 
the Council to which the administration of the Charity has been delegated (the Sub 
Committee), and was subsequently comprised in a deed dated 26 May 2017 (the 
Deed of Easement). 

 
(2) The deposit by Bellway Homes of top soil from the development site on to the 

surface of an area of the Charity Land, with the apparent permission of the Council 

Page 6



 

   

but without any separate approval from the Sub Committee, to a depth of 150-180 
cm in places. 

 
(3) The request by the Friends of Moston Brook (the Friends), a local organisation, for  
 

(i) the provision by the Council of an additional piece of land to replace 
the area of the attenuation basis (which can no longer be actively 
used for recreational purposes) and  

 
(ii)  the removal of the top soil, (a procedure which could cost in the 

region of £200,000.)  
 
4.2 The general principles to be considered are: 
 

(1) All decisions relating to the Charity Land must be taken by the Council as trustee, 
i.e. by the Sub Committee, rather than by the Council as local authority. 

 
(2) It is not open to the Sub Committee to allow the Charity’s property to be used for 

the benefit of a non-charitable body without (i) being sure that the action is in the 
Charity’s best interests and (ii) securing the best terms reasonably obtainable for 
the Charity:  s 119 of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act). 

 
(3) Transactions involving both the Charity and the Council as local authority require 

the prior consent of the Charity Commission in view of the conflict of interest and 
duty otherwise involved. 

 
(4) Any disposition of Charity Land, including the grant of an easement but not the 

grant of a licence, must in any case be carried out in accordance with ss 117-121 
of the 2011 Act. Section 121 requires public notice to be given of the proposed 
disposition of any land held on trust for use for charitable purposes and requires 
the Trustees to take account of any representations received as a result. 

 
(5) Any grant of a licence over Charity Land must be clearly within the Charity’s 

interests and made for the best consideration reasonable obtainable which is 
appropriate to the licence terms. 

 
4.3 In the circumstances the course of action recommended is for the Council as Trustee to 

now: 
 

(i)  Report the current situation to the Charity Commission.  
 
(ii) Seek independent advice on the damage caused (the extent of the disamenity), 

the extent of financial compensation required in the form of a gift of land to the 
Charity or other possible remedies.   

 
(iii) Discuss the proposed compensation/remedy/gift of additional land with the Friends 

and consult with the wider public on the proposals.  
 
(iv)   Consider the independent advice and outcomes of the various consultations. 
 
(v) Seek the Charity Commission’s approval to the proposed solutions. 

 
5. Co-operative Agenda 
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 

Page 7



 

   

6 Human Resources Comments 
 
6.1 Not applicable. 
 
7 Risk Assessments 
 
7.1 To be informed by the outcome of the independent survey. 
 
8 IT Implications 
 
8.1 Not applicable.  
 
9 Property Implications 
 
9.1 Outlined above.  
 
10 Procurement Implications 
 
10.1 Not applicable. 
 
11 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
11.1 Outlined above. 
 
12 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
12.1 Not applicable.  
 
13 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
13.1  No 
 
14 Key Decision 
 
14.1 Not applicable.  
 
15 Key Decision Reference 
 
15.1 Not applicable. 
 
16 Appendices  
 
16. Appendix 1 – Plan of Lower Memorial Park trust Land 
 Appendix 2 – Plan showing land requested by the Friends Group (red edged). 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

   

 

Appendix 1 – Memorial Trust Land 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



 

   

 

Appendix 2 – Plan showing land requested by the Friends Group (edged red). 
 

 
 

 

Page 10


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Lower Memorial Park Failsworth

